
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:

Council Chamber Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding

Contact: Gregory Watkinson
Direct Dial: 01775 764599
e-mail: GWatkinson@Sholland.gov.uk

Date: 15 January 2019

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in the Council Chamber, Council 
Offices, Priory Road, Spalding on Wednesday, 23 January 2019, commencing at 6.30 
pm at which your attendance is requested. 

Yours faithfully,

Anna Graves
Chief Executive

(Quorum:13)
A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. Minutes 
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28 
November 2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
5 - 14)

3. Declaration of Interests. 
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.)

4. Chairman's Announcements. 

5. Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet. 

6. Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6 

7. Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7 



8. Committee Minutes 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:-

a)  Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel - 1 November 2018  

(Pages 
15 - 20)

b)  Policy Development Panel - 7 November 2018  (Pages 
21 - 26)

c)  Licensing Committee - 8 November 2018  (Pages 
27 - 28)

d)  Committee of the Licensing Authority - 8 November 2018  (Pages 
29 - 30)

e)  Performance Monitoring Panel - 13 November 2018  (Pages 
31 - 40)

f)  Planning Committee -14 November 2018  (Pages 
41 - 50)

g)  Planning Committee - 19 December 2018  (Pages 
51 - 58)

9. Report from the Cabinet meeting held on 15 January 2019 
To consider any recommendations of the Cabinet affecting the budget 
and policy framework (Report of the Cabinet to follow).

(Please note that some appendices associated with this report are not 
for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 (information relating to any 
individual, information which is likely  to reveal the identity of an 
individual and information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)) in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972, and are 
therefore attached at agenda item 23).

(To 
Follow)

10. Key Decision Plan 
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
59 - 66)

11. Reports from Outside Bodies 
Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire – December 2018
(Report of Councillor Brewis enclosed)

(Pages 
67 - 72)

12. Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to 
the Constitution. 
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to 
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to 
the Constitution.

13. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.

14. Exclusion of the Press and Public 



To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4 and 7a of Schedule 12 (A) of the Act.

15. Restricted Minutes 
To consider the restricted minutes of the meeting of South Holland 
District Council held on 28 November 2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
73 - 76)

16. Report from the Cabinet Meeting held on 15 January 2019 (exempt 
appendices) 
Agenda item 9 refers.

(To 
Follow)

17. Facilitating the Delivery of Strategic Work Programmes. 
To give consideration to the capacity and resources to deliver key 
strategic work programmes. (Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council 
and the Portfolio Holder for Growth and Commercialisation enclosed)

(Pages 
77 - 90)

18. Resourcing within the Planning & Building Control Department 
To seek the approval of Members for a proposal to address capacity, 
resilience, recruitment and retention issues within the Planning & 
Building Control Department. (Report of the Portfolio Holder Place 
enclosed)

(Pages 
91 - 
118)

19. Senior Manager Workforce Strategy 
To review the Pay and Terms and Conditions of the Senior Management 
Team. (Report of the Executive Director – Strategy and Governance 
(Monitoring Officer) enclosed)

(Pages 
119 - 
134)



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 28 
November 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Grocock (Chairman)
H Drury (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
J Avery
F Biggadike
M D Booth
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
T A Carter
A Casson

M G Chandler
G K Dark
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
R Gambba-Jones
C N Johnson
C J Lawton
J D McLean
A M Newton
G A Porter
J L Reynolds

M D Seymour
S-A Slade
E J Sneath
G J Taylor
A C Tennant
J Whitbourn
P A Williams
A R Woolf
C N Worth
S Wray

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A Harrison, 
J L King and J Tyrrell,  

In Attendance:  Shared Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), Executive 
Director Commercialisation, Licensing and Business Support Manager, Executive 
Manager Governance, Executive Manager People and Public Protection, Executive 
Manager Growth, Communities Manager, Place Manager and Democratic Services 
Officer.

Action By
49. MINUTES 

Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting of 
South Holland District Council which was held on 12 September 
2018.

AGREED:

That the minutes be agreed as a correct record 

50. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were none 

51. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

The Chairman read the results of Spalding in Bloom which had 
been provided by Councillor Newton. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



- 2 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

52. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE 
CABINET. 

There were none. 

53. QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER 
6 

The following question was received from Councillor 
Foyster:

“Hallgate play area, Holbeach. 

You will be aware that Holbeach is very short of green 
spaces, public leisure facilities and exercise areas. This 
needs correcting now, even before the proposed huge new 
residential developments arrive.   About 18 months ago a 
Holbeach local fundraising charity, friends of Holbech 
Parks, who work closely with the Parish Council, 
approached SHDC regarding the installation of new play 
equipment in the Hallgate play area. 

Since that time there have been various exchanges of 
correspondence and site meetings with officers, 
culminating in a proposal for SHDC to lease the area to the 
Parish Council for a minimum of 15 years, Parish would 
then take over maintenance of the site and any new 
equipment installed in it.  Last summer the Parish were 
also told that 106 funding could be provided to help with 
equipment costs.

There appears to be little progress towards any lease.  
This is highly unsatisfactory and if it indicates the speed 
with which the council handles such requests from local 
groups or parish councils, it does not say much for the 
efficiency of the council and it's not surprising that such 
local initiatives appear infrequent. 

Please explain the extraordinary delay in dealing with a 
relatively straightforward request, advise when Holbeach 
may expect an outcome and explain any policy issues that 
may be affecting the proposal. If officers are unable to 
agree a satisfactory deal very soon the Parish Council and 
the funding group will consider withdrawing from 
negotiations, the charity, parish councillors and our own 
parish officers have already wasted far too much time on 
this matter.

Page 6



- 3 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

Paul Foyster. Holbeach Town Ward.”

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Health has provided the 
following response:

“Following an approach by the parish, officers have been in 
discussions with Holbeach Parish Council concerning the 
potential for the installation of play equipment in the Hall 
Hill Road area of the town. 

These initial discussions have focused on matters including 
the potential long-term leasing of council owned land to a 
third party. 

Prior to making a long-term commitment concerning a 
council asset, such as the granting of a lease, it is standard 
practice for the council to give consideration to the 
potential short, medium and long term implications of such 
a decision. 

Consequently, ahead of making any long term 
decisions, officers within the council’s strategic property 
team are exploring the potential future operational and 
strategic value of the site to the council. This work is 
underway and will be concluded by the end of February.”

 

54. QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 7 

Question to: Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities, 
Councillor Taylor
Question from: Councillor Foyster
Topic: Remedial works for SHC

Councillor Foyster asked when the final figures for the cost of 
remedial works on the South Holland Centre would be provided. 
Councillor Taylor responded that he had already provided an 
answer but could send him an additional one

Question to: The Leader, Lord Porter
Question from: Councillor Brewis
Topic: Drainage Board Special interest group

Councillor Brewis wanted to know if the authority was any closer 

Page 7



- 4 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

to having a group Drainage Board Special Interest Group created. 
The Leader responded that 10 signatures from separate Councils 
were required to create a Special Interest Group, and until that 
moment, a group could not be formed.

Question to: Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategy, 
Governance and Transformation, Councillor Chandler
Question from: Councillor Biggadike
Topic: Chocolate Liqueur Licensing rules 

Councillor Biggadike stated that he had seen chocolate liquors 
being sold in local shops and asked if they required a license. 
Councillor Chandler deferred to The Licensing and Business 
Support Manager who responded that it would depend on the 
alcohol content of the liquers.

Question to: Portfolio Holder for Place, Councillor Gambba-
Jones
Question from: Councillor Biggadike
Topic: Low Lane, Holbeach

Councillor Biggadike stated that he was aware that one side of 
Low Lane in Holbeach had been renamed. The Portfolio Holder 
for Place stated that developers were not allowed to rename 
roads as they pleased, but that he had not been notified of this 
change. He stated that an investigation could take place by the 
Planning Team if Councillor Biggadike raised the matter with 
them.

 

55. COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Governance and Audit Committee – 26 July 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Performance Monitoring Panel - 31 July 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Planning Committee – 5 September 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Page 8



- 5 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

Policy Development Panel – 19 September 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Performance Monitoring Panel – 26 September 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Special Meeting of the Licensing Committee – 1 October 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel  - 4 October 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Planning Committee - 10 October 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

Governance and Audit Committee - 18 October 2018

DECISION:
That the minutes be received

56. REPORT FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 
2018 

Consideration was given to the Report of Cabinet which sought 
approval for recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of;

a) Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2019/20 (Cabinet 
minute 45/18) (Cabinet agenda item 12)

b) Finance Report Quarter 2 2018-19 (Cabinet minute 46/18) 
(Cabinet agenda item 13)

Local Council Tax Support Scheme

The Portfolio Holder for finance introduced the scheme which was 
in line with changes made by DWP and introduced a new 

Page 9



- 6 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

category for care leavers aged 18-21.

A consultation exercise had taken place between 14 September 
and 2 November, the result of which had been largely positive 
and was set out in the Cabinet report.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance felt that the introduction of 
Universal credit would make changes necessary in the future 

Finance Report Quarter 2 2018-19

The Portfolio Holder for finance introduced the report and asked 
members to note the following:

The General fund was forecasted to have an underspend of 
£290,000 by the end of the year.

The Housing Revenue Account had a forecasted reduction of 
£87,000 in its surplus budget.

The Housing Revenue Account general reserve had increased 
from £12.8 million to £15.8 million.

It was proposed in the report that the Council buys 12 CSU 
vehicles.

DECISION:

a) Local Council Tax Support Scheme

1. That the current Council Tax Support Scheme be 
continued for 2019/20 with uprating in line with the 
DWP’s annual update of allowances and premiums for 
housing benefit.

2. That a new class for Care Leavers, aged 18-21 years 
be introduced.

3. That delegated authority to the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance be agreed, to approve the final 
scheme policy in line with the report.

b) Finance Report Quarter 2 2018-19

4. That the HRA Capital Programme be increased by 
£260,000 to the Major Repairs Service. 

Page 10



- 7 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

57. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan.

DECISION:

That the Key Decision Plan be received. 

58. EXTERNAL FUNDING OFFICER 

Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Leader which 
sought the Council’s agreement to create a shared External 
Funding Officer post as a means of supporting the council’s 
activity in relation to identifying, applying for and securing external 
funding to support delivery of Key Council Objectives.

The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation presented the report on behalf of the Portfolio 
Holder for Growth and Commercialisation. He stated that the 
Council was committed to delivering the corporate plan which 
supported local communities. 

Members asked whether the proposed salary would be sufficient 
to attract suitable candidates and whether the post was suitable to 
be shared. The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation was confident that both the budgeted 
remuneration figures and the decision to have the post be shared, 
were appropriate. 

The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation reported that performance would be measured 
and would likely also be reported to scrutiny.

Members agreed that the additional resource was needed, but 
paid tribute to the success of existing officers who had already 
been very successful in securing grant funds.

DECISION:

That members approve the creation of a new shared External 
Funding Officer post. 

59. GAMBLING ACT STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Public Protection which sought approval of the draft revised 
Gambling Policy (Statement of Principles). The draft Policy had 
been through a process of consultation, the results of which were 

Page 11



- 8 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

set out in the report..

The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation stated that the update covered safeguarding in 
greater detail and also was in line with legislative changes.

DECISION:

That Council approve the revised Gambling Policy (Statement of 
Principles) as shown at Appendix A of the report. 

60. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018 

Consideration was given to the report of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel and the Policy Development Panel which 
updated members on the work of both scrutiny panels throughout 
2017-2018.

The Chairmen of both the Performance Monitoring Panel and the 
Policy Development Panel offered their thanks to all those who 
had supported the panels over the last year.

DECISION:

That the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2017-2018 be 
received. 

61. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 
2017-2018 

Consideration was given to the report of the Governance and 
Audit Committee which updated members on the work of the 
Governance and Audit Committee throughout 2017-2018.

The Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee wished to 
thank those who had supported the committee in the previous 
year.

DECISION:

That the Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report 2017-
2018 be received.
 

62. MID TERM TREASURY REPORT 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) which provided the Council with an 

Page 12



- 9 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

update of the treasury management position of the Council as at 
30 September 2018.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance introduced the report and stated 
that no major concerns were highlighted. Budget investment 
return for 18/19 was £250,000, but by the end of the year it would 
be £367,000.

DECISION:

That the Council receives and approves the Mid Term Treasury 
Report 2018/19, the economic update from Link Asset Services at 
Appendix A and the treasury activity as detailed in Appendix B 
as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management 2017. 

63. REPORTS FROM OUTSIDE BODIES 

Consideration was given to the report of Councillor Brewis which 
updated the Council after the latest meeting of the Health Scrutiny 
for Lincolnshire Committee, and also to seek approval from 
members for a letter of protest to be written in respect of the 
omission from reports of the Lincolnshire East Clinical 
Commission Group of any provision east of Stamford or South of 
Boston.

Councillor Brewis stated that the most recent meeting was 
concerning to him, in that it did not make provision for the South 
Holland Area

Members stated were concerned that the survey sent to all 
Spalding residents about the closing of the Pennygate surgery 
appeared to be leading. Members noted that they could write to 
their health representative on this matter.

DECISION:

That, in relation to Section 2.1 of the report, the Council write in 
protest of the omission from reports of the Lincolnshire East 
Clinical Commission Group of any provision east of Stamford or 
South of Boston, concerning urgent treatment and emergency 
care. 

64. NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION. 

There were none 

Page 13



- 10 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 
28 November 2018

65. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were none 

66. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

DECISION:

That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 
1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12 (A) of the Act.
 

67. AWARD OF LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Leader and 
the Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities which 
proposed the awarding of a contract for the operation and 
management of the Castle Sports Complex, Spalding and Peele 
Leisure Centre, Long Sutton.

DECISION:

In advance of a formal Leader decision to award the Leisure 
Management Contract, Full Council approves the 
recommendations as detailed in the report.
 

(The meeting ended at 7.55 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 14



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 1 November 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A R Woolf 
 

B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
F Biggadike
M D Booth

C J T H Brewis
G K Dark
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
A Harrison
J L King

A M Newton
J L Reynolds
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
A R Woolf
S Wray

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J D McLean, 
E J Sneath and J Whitbourn 

In Attendance:  Portfolio Holder – Finance, Portfolio Holder – Governance and 
Customer, Executive Director Strategy and Governance, Shared Executive Manager 
Information, Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager, Digital and 
Customer Access Manager, Shared ICT Manager and Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
7. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

Councillor A Woolf was elected as Chairman for the duration of 
this meeting. 

8. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none. 

9. CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY AND ICT & DIGITAL 
STRATEGY 

It was agreed by the Chairman of the Joint Panel of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel, 
that agenda items 4 and 5 would be discussed together, due to 
the similarities between the reports and their interlinked nature.

Consideration was given to the reports of the Portfolio Holder for 
Governance and Customer and the Executive Director – Strategy 
and Governance which sought to receive the Joint Panel’s 
feedback on two new strategies which aimed to improve 
residents’ experience of contacting South Holland District Council 
while also increasing the efficiency of the overall operating 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8.a)



- 2 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

arrangements.

Councillor Carter was in attendance as the Portfolio Holder for 
Governance and Customer, and introduced the two reports. It was 
agreed that digital strategies should aim to focus digital resources 
on those who would / were likely to use digital services but that 
non-digital access routes were maintained too for those who 
struggled with digital interaction, with saved resources and time 
dedicated to such customers.

Members asked what input CPBS had, had on the strategies. The 
Executive Manager for information replied that both of the reports 
had been to the Council’s ICT and Customer Governance Board 
for feedback on multiple occasions and that CPBS Managers sat 
on this board.

Members asked why the reports did not include a business case. 
They felt that officers should be mindful to ensure the strategy 
was tailored to South Holland District Council. They also brought 
up the quotes from personas on page 7 of the appendix to the 
Customer Access Strategy. They felt that these quotes seemed 
unnecessary. On that point, the Executive Manager for 
Information stated that the strategy was in fact aimed at reaching 
out to a greater proportion of residents and that it was hoped it 
would allow the Council to be able to fulfil more complex requests, 
which were hard to carry out due to the limitations with the current 
system.

Regarding the business case, The Executive Manager for 
Information stated that the quoted amounts may have seemed to 
be larger than the quotes provided by CPBS to replace the 
Customer Relationship Management system because of the size 
of the regenerative works that the Council wanted to undertake to 
improve its wider business processes. It was stated that when the 
report went to its final decision maker, there would be checks and 
balances put in place to ensure that the Council would not be 
made out of pocket by the changes.

Members also stated that they felt that with the current age 
demographic of the district, the change was premature until there 
was a properly reasoned business case for such a change. They 
felt that the strategy should not yet be adopted.

Members questioned the quotes and personas on page 7 of the 
appendix to the report of the Customer Access Strategy, feeling 
that they were unrealistic. They also wanted to establish where 
the budget for the strategies was coming from. Members felt that 

Page 16



- 3 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

the strategy should go to further scrutiny before it went to its final 
decision maker. The Executive Director for Strategy and 
Governance stated that it had not been determined where the 
allocation budget would come from and that work would be done 
to define this over the coming weeks and months.

Councillors mentioned that they had noticed that CPBS were not 
mentioned within the Customer Access Strategy document and 
could not see the reason for not mentioning the Council’s 
Strategic partner in the document. The Executive Director for 
Strategy and Governance answered that this was the case in the 
Customer Access Strategy document, only because it was a 
public facing document, but that CPBS had been involved in the 
creation of the documents.

Members further questioned where the budget was coming from 
for both strategies. The Executive Manager for Information stated 
that work had been done with the Finance Partner to find money 
in the transformation fund but that more work would be done in 
the coming months to locate the additional monies.

Members stated that they were worried that the strategy may not 
be particularly beneficial. The Executive Manager for Information 
stated that the benefit would come from the fact that the public 
interaction services would be streamlined, easier to work with and 
that it would be easier to guarantee that requests were followed 
up on in a more effective and timely fashion. The Digital and 
Customer Services Manager stated that the changes allowed the 
authority to spend more time and resources with people who had 
difficulties engaging digitally.

Members said they would have liked to have seen more 
supporting evidence behind the quotes, figures and information. 
They requested that officers carry out work to generate a risk 
assessment linked to the document in order to plan for any 
outcome. Members mentioned that on Page 11 of the appendix to 
the report of the ICT & Digital Strategy there was inclusion of 
Breckland District Council office locations which they felt 
suggested the report was not tailored specifically to South Holland 
District Council. At that point several members stated that they 
could not vote to approve the report until more had been done to 
generate a risk assessment, business case and costing details. 
The Digital and Customer Services Manager stated that the 
personas featured in the Customer Access Strategy were actually 
based upon real data gathered from the public of South Holland.

The Executive Director for Strategy and Governance stated that it 

Page 17



- 4 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

could be possible to go back with the Councillors’ feedback to 
address the issues raised and that the reports be brought back to 
further scrutiny.

Fears were raised that a media and public opinion issue could 
occur upon the implementation of these strategies if it was not 
made perfectly clear that non-digital routes of interaction were not 
being cut. The Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer 
stated that people would not be ‘forced’ to adopt online-only 
interaction and that the non-digital communication routes would 
always be available. The Executive Manager for Information 
further stated that they did not want to disadvantage anyone and 
reassured members that there was no intention to remove non-
digital interaction under these strategies and the authority would 
support people in using ICT if they wished to learn.

Some members believed that the same increase in customer 
satisfaction could be achieved by improving funding to services 
instead of making the reporting processes better. The Executive 
Manager for Information explained that the intention behind the 
streamlining of these services was to free up resources that could 
be used and reinvested in frontline services.

Councillor Coupland spoke as the Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
saying that he was under the impression that CPBS hadn’t seen 
the two strategies and that he had hoped that CPBS would be let 
into the arrangement. He agreed with the previously expressed 
sentiment that this should be treated as an introductory document 
and be taken away for further work. He felt there was a lot of work 
to be done on the costs and believed that he was yet to be 
convinced that the two strategies would present a cost benefit.

The Chairman asked why a date of April 2019 had been given for 
implementation of the two strategies. He asked why this date 
seemed to be required. It was stated that this was due to an audit 
requirement for CPBS due to the need to replace the current 
Customer Relationship Management System and to coincide with 
the launch of the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Members asked that if the report were to be re-presented, there 
should be a properly detailed section on risk and that the reports 
should be re-presented in good time.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance asked that all costings relating to 
these strategies would be presented to him in the future.

AGREED:

Page 18



- 5 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

a) That the content of the Customer Access Strategy report 
and attached draft Customer Access Strategy be noted.

b) That the contents of the ICT & Digital strategy report, 
together with the attached draft ICT and Digital Strategy 
and Digital Work Programme, be noted.

c) That both reports be strengthened with the inclusion of 
further supporting evidence.

d) That officers take away both strategies to add further 
details, with special attention made to including details on 
costing, the business case, risk assessment and ensuring 
that all documents are tailored specifically for SHDC.

e) That the potential of re-presenting both reports to further 
scrutiny Committees in the future before the final decision 
is made, be examined by officers. 

f) That all future costing matters on the topic of these two 
strategies be passed to the Portfolio Holder for Finance.

 

10. CORPORATE PLAN 2019-23 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director of 
Strategy and Governance which sought to consult with the Joint 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel on 
the content of the new draft corporate plan for the period 2019-
2023. 

AGREED:

That the content of the draft Corporate Plan be noted. 

11. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were none. 

(The meeting ended at 8.26 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 19



- 6 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

Page 20



- 20 -

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 7 November 2018 
at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A R Woolf (Chairman)
J D McLean (Vice-Chairman)

J R Astill
F Biggadike
M D Booth
H Drury

L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
A Harrison
A M Newton

J L Reynolds
E J Sneath

In Attendance:  The Housing Services Manager, the Licensing and Business Support 
Manager, the Place Manager and the Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J L King and S-
A Slade 

Action By
30. MINUTES 

Policy Development Panel - 19 September 2018

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the 
Policy Development Panel which was held on 19 September 2018

AGREED:

That the minutes be signed as a correct record

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel - 4 October 2018

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Joint 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel 
which was held on 4 October 2018

AGREED:

That the minutes be signed as a correct record.

31. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were none

32. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were none

Page 21

Agenda Item 8.b)



- 21 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 7 
November 2018

33. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no tracking of recommendations

34. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL 

There were none

35. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the key decision plan published on 19 
October 2018

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan be noted.

36. POLICY REGISTER 

Consideration was given to the Policy Register dated 24 October 
2018.

Members wanted to make note of the fact that several items were 
significantly out of date. The Vice-Chairman stated that whilst this 
was true, significant improvements had been made to delivering 
the policy reviews on time and that the authority was on track to 
be completely up-to-date in the near future.

AGREED:

That the Policy Register Be noted.

37. REVISED TENANCY AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING TENANTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Health and the Executive Director – Place which 
sought to advise members of the consultation process required to 
amend SHDC’s Introductory and Secure Tenancy Agreement.

The Housing Services Manager stated that the changes were 
designed to toughen the agreement, including a requirement for 
new tenants to provide 4 weeks worth of rent up front upon 
commencing a tenancy and allowances for greater controls over 
pet ownership in rented properties among other changes. It was 
stated that the changes were being made to make the Authority 
compliant with recent changes to several pieces of legislation.

Page 22



- 22 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 7 
November 2018

Members stated that they felt that they agreed with the changes. 
However, they asked about references to tenants agreeing to the 
condition of a property when they took it. They were concerned 
that this would bar tenants from complaining about poor 
conditions. The Place Manager stated that the authority still had 
standards that they would be obliged to keep properties in line 
with.

Members also referred to demands for tenants to move in to 
properties immediately upon taking of the contract. The Housing 
Services Manager  responded that this was because tenants 
would not be able to claim benefits until they showed they were 
moving in.

Members asked which tenants would be consulted and whom the 
changes would be made for. The Housing Services responded 
that both the consultation and the final document would be for all 
tenants and would not exclude any group.

Members asked how checks would be made for compliancy. The 
Housing Services Manager responded that the authority had 
implemented annual visits. 

The Chairman asked how many chances would be given to non-
compliers to the changes. The Housing Services Manager stated 
that changes were being looked at to toughen up on enforcement 
as it was generally agreed that the Authority had been lenient on 
enforcement and that it was the prevailing opinion that this should 
be changed.

The Chairman asked about paragraph 1.6 of the report, 
questioning why the current tenants were being given a 28 day 
consultation period on the new agreement. The Housing Services 
Manager stated that the Housing Act 1985 made this an 
obligation.

Members asked if there was any help available for people who 
were unable to meet tenancy conditions. The Housing Services 
Manager stated that it was very much the opinion of the Housing 
Team that they wanted to avoid enforcing against people who had 
legitimate reasons that meant they were unable to meet 
conditions, and that considerations would be made on a case-by-
case basis.

The Chairman noticed the expansion of the definition of anti-
social behaviour and asked for examples of what would be newly 
considered anti-social behaviour. The Housing Services Manager 

Page 23



- 23 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 7 
November 2018

responded that this could now include untidy gardens and 
intimidating behaviour such as noise etc.

Members asked if there was a system in place of matching a 
property to a tenant. The Housing Services Manager responded 
that tenants would only be offered properties which fit their needs.

AGREED:

1) That the Panel note the intention to update the Council’s 
Introductory and Secure agreement.

2) That the Panel notes the formal consultation process 
required to make changes to the tenancy agreement.

38. SAFEGUARDING POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Strategy, Governance and Transformation and the Portfolio 
Holder for Communities and Facilities which sought the panel’s 
recommendation that the Safeguarding Policy go forward to 
Cabinet for consideration.

The Licensing and Business Support Manager introduced the 
report stating that the policy had been influenced by similar 
policies held by other Lincolnshire authorities. It was stated that it 
was hoped that the implementation would be complimented with 
some training and extensive communications.

The Vice-Chairman asked what the term ‘mate crime’ was defined 
as. The Licensing and Business Support Manager responded that 
this was related to people maliciously befriending vulnerable 
people and exploiting them. The Licensing and Business Support 
Manager stated that she could include clarification of the ‘jargon’ 
in the report.

The Vice-Chairman asked if the Authority held responsibility for 
the acts of their contractors. The Licensing and Business Support 
Manager responded that the authority did take responsibility but 
that contractors were always asked for their safeguarding policy 
to ensure that it was complaint with SHDC’s

The Vice-Chairman stated that he had noticed a lack of reference 
to mental health issues. He wondered if the policy could be used 
to cover people with Mental Health issues. The Licensing and 
Business Support Manager responded that this was a good point 
and that she could put some work in to ensure that the policy had 
at least some cover for Mental Health issues

Page 24



- 24 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 7 
November 2018

Members asked if anyone needed to receive a DBS check. The 
Licensing and Business Support Manager responded that officers 
of the Council would only require such a check in certain 
circumstances as prescribed by the guidance for DBS checks. 

Members stated they had never been DBS checked and felt that 
the lack of demand for members to be checked seemed to be an 
oversight. Other members replied that it should be the 
responsibility of members themselves to take any necessary 
steps that were relevant to the work they wished to carry out. The 
Licensing and Business Support Manager responded that 
members were not checked because there were limitations on 
whom the authority were allowed to check, but stated that 
members may be free to apply for a check  themselves.

Members felt that it was expected that a District Councillor would 
have been DBS checked. They felt that all members would come 
into contact with children and vulnerable people as part of their 
duties. Members felt that they should be encouraged to volunteer 
for a DBS Check. Officers stated that they felt that this could be 
something that could be raised with the Democratic Services and 
Legal departments for clarification.
 
AGREED:

1) That the Policy Development Panel notes the new 
safeguarding policy

2) That the Policy Development Panel recommend that the 
policy goes to Cabinet for approval.

39. POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

The Chairman wanted information on where the Public Open 
Spaces Task Group was. A member of the task group responded 
that there were issues found with the report of the task group and 
that the Chairman of the Public Open Spaces Task Group was 
going back to officers for more work to be done to improve the 
policy and the task group would be meeting again to discuss the 
changes.

AGREED:

That the work programme be noted.

Page 25



- 25 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 7 
November 2018

40. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none.

(The meeting ended at 7.50 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 26



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the LICENSING COMMITTEE held in the Meeting Room 1, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 8 November 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A Harrison (Chairman)
J Tyrrell (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
F Biggadike
M D Booth

T A Carter
A Casson
M G Chandler

H Drury
S Wray

In Attendance: Licensing and Business Support Manager Licensing Team Leader

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G K Dark, 
C N Johnson, J L King, A M Newton and J Whitbourn 

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none

11. MINUTES 

Licensing Committee – 19 July 2018

Minutes agreed as a correct record.

Special meeting of the Licensing Committee – 1 October 2018

Minutes agreed as a correct record.

12. LICENSING UPDATE 

The Licensing and Business Support Manager provided an update to the amount of 
license applications that had been received during quarter 1 and 2. After receiving 
this update, members raised the following points;

Members asked if all current licenses would expire on 31 December 2018. Officers 
responded that this was the case for the vast majority of licenses, but that there were 
some which would expire slightly afterwards and some which would expire slightly 
before.

Members asked if officers had received what they considered to be a lot of 
applications, given the tighter regulations. Officers responded that this was the case. 
The tightening of the regulations meant that more people were required to licence 
themselves.

Members felt that the annual examination of taxis was too infrequent and asked for 
this to be looked at during the review of the taxi policy.

Page 27

Agenda Item 8.c)



- 2 -

LICENSING COMMITTEE - 8 November 
2018

Members asked that, at the next meeting they be provided with an itemised list of 
how many of each type of license the authority currently oversaw.

AGREED:

1) That the contents of the Licensing Update be noted.

2) That members be provided with a list of each type of Licence was issued by 
the Council and how many are issued.

13. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were none

(The meeting ended at 7.40 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 28



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY held in 
the Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 8 
November 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A Harrison (Chairman)
J Tyrrell (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
F Biggadike
M D Booth

T A Carter
A Casson
M G Chandler

H Drury
S Wray

In Attendance: Licensing and Business Support Manager, Licensing Team Leader 
and Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G K Dark, 
C N Johnson, J L King, A M Newton and J Whitbourn 

6. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none.

7. MINUTES 

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Committee of the 
Licensing Authority that was held on 19 July 2018.

AGREED:

That the minutes be signed as a correct record.

8. GAMBLING ACT POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – People and Public 
Protection which sought the consideration of the revised Gambling Policy (Statement 
of Principles)

The Licensing Team Leader stated that the review had to take place every 6 years 
and that the consultation process had commenced on 19 September.

The gambling commission had asked that they be contacted if any legal challenges 
were presented. There had been none and therefore there was no need to contact 
the Gambling Commission.

AGREED:

1) That the contents of the report be noted.

Page 29

Agenda Item 8.d)



- 2 -

COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING 
AUTHORITY - 8 November 2018

2) That the Gambling Act Policy be recommended to Full Council.

9. UPDATE ON MATTERS RELEVANT TO THE BUSINESS OF THE COMMITTEE 

The Licensing and Business Support Manager provided an update to the amount of 
premises licenses which had been received during Q1 and Q2. After the committee 
received the update, the following points were raised by members;

Councillor Casson provided an update on his activities relating to the committee. He 
stated that he had been out with the Police doing checks. He had also spent a day 
attached to trading standards whilst they were on duty. 

Members stated that on Saturday 1 December 2018, on radio 4 there would be a 
segment on illegal cigarettes and this would feature Spalding, wherein Councillor 
Casson had recorded an interview.

10. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were none

(The meeting ended at 7.34 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 30



- 13 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 13 November 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
P C Foyster

J D McLean
A M Newton

M D Seymour
S Wray

 

In Attendance:  The Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), the Executive 
Manager Growth, the Place Manager, the Communities Manager, the Corporate 
Improvement and Performance Manager, the Inward Investment Manager, the 
Democratic Services Officer and the Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J R Astill, 
C J T H Brewis, G K Dark, J L King, A C Tennant and J Whitbourn. 

Action By
23 MINUTES 

AGREED:

a) That the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel held on 26 September 2018 were signed by 
the Chairman as a correct record;

b) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 4 
October 2018 were signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 

24 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

25 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6. 

26 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no responses of the Cabinet to consider. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8.e)



- 14 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

27 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

28 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 5 
November 2018.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan issued on 5 November 2018 be 
noted. 

29 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT - QUARTER 2 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director, 
Strategy and Governance, which provided an update on Council 
performance for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 September 2018.

Quarter 2 saw performance drop slightly in comparison to quarter 
3.  Performance was rated as ‘moderate’ with 12 indicators being 
green (63%) which indicates good performance.  There were 3 
(15%0 amber indicators and 4 red indicators (21%), highlighting 
lower than expected performance.  There were 7 indicators which 
were classified as data only – this meant that they were monitored 
without requiring a target.

The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager 
highlighted the following:

 There had been a significant increase in complaints received – 
trend analysis was being undertaken to try and identify why.

 Staff turnover – a comparison of the Authority’s staff turnover 
against the national average was currently being undertaken.  

 One of the recommendations within the report was that the 
current target score for staff turnover was amended to reflect 
modern turnover rates for local authorities.  The proposal was 
that the maximum threshold for staff turnover was amended 
from 10% to 17.5% for 2018/19.

In discussing the report, the following key points emerged:

 Members asked if there was a trend in the increase in 
complaints?  Officers responded that this formed part of the 
trend analysis work currently being undertaken.  The results of 
this would be brought back to a future meeting.

Page 32



- 15 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

 Members asked if staff turnover was higher in certain grades 
of staff than others? Officers responded that high level 
reasons for staff turnover were included within the report, but 
this information had to be interrogated further and the 
information brought back to the Panel.

 Members responded that it would be useful to see the results 
of exit interviews.  Officers advised the individuals could not be 
identified but the information could be summarised.

 Members commented that collection rates, particularly for 
Business Rates, were good, and that staff should be 
congratulated.  It was hoped that this would reduce the 
amount of money the Authority had to write off.  

AGREED:

That the content of the report be noted.

(The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager left the 
meeting following discussion of this item). 

30 CRIME AND DISORDER PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 

With the agreement of the Chairman, this item was brought 
forward on the agenda.

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided members with an update on community 
safety partnership work at a County and local level.  The Portfolio 
Holder Communities and Facilities and the Communities Manager 
were in attendance to provide further information and answer the 
Panel’s questions.  The following issues were raised:

 Officers confirmed that to date, 33 Fixed Penalty Notices had 
been issued by the wardens and that although the charges 
varied depending on how promptly they were paid, they 
averaged £75.  Members questioned whether this level of 
income was sustainable once the funding for the wardens 
ended.

o Officers commented that alternative models had 
been explored before commencing this project. The 
benefit of the current delivery project was that in 
addition to generating some income and tackling the 
issue, it was also providing an educational role and 
building an evidence base for future business 
models.

 Officers provided some background to members on the Youth 
Restorative Option, referred to within the report.  It was a new 

Page 33



- 16 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

initiative which aimed to reduce the levels of anti social 
behaviour.  

o Members commented that they wished to see more 
information on output.  There had been similar 
boards previously which had delivered mixed results 
and more information on this initiative was required, 
advising how the various agencies were working 
together to solve the problem.

 Members asked whether mental health was an issue that was 
being monitored, and whether it was possible to monitor how 
much the issue was a background to crimes that were 
committed.

o Officers responded that the mental health of victims 
and perpetrators was an issue for the ASB Core 
Priority Group.  It was very active, with a county lead 
and more training being provided for front line staff.  
Consideration was being given to how mental health 
nurses and professionals could provide help. Anti 
social behaviour cases could be tracked with 
information going through the PCC and at County 
Council level in respect to mental health and Crisis.  
More information on this would be provided within 
the next report.

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be provided to the Panel in six 
months time, to include information on how the Youth 
Restorative Option would be working with various agencies to 
address the issue of antisocial behaviour, and links between 
mental health and crime. 

EH CM 

31 SWIMMING POOL AND LEISURE FACILITIES CONTRACT 
TASK GROUP UPDATE 

With the agreement of the Chairman, this item was brought 
forward on the agenda.

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided members with an update on the 
recommendations of the Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities 
Contract Task Group.  The Task Group had presented its 
recommendations to Cabinet in November 2016, and the Panel 
had since been provided with three progress updates.

Page 34



- 17 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

The Communities Manager provided an update on the Task 
Group’s recommendations.  She also advised that its 
recommendations had been included within the contract and 
service specification for the new leisure contract, which was 
shortly to be awarded.  Better performance and feedback was 
anticipated.

Members considered the information, and the following issues 
were raised:

 Where feedback was received, were these responded to, and 
could it be established if multiple comments were received 
from the same individuals?  

o Officers responded that feedback was provided 
however, these were anonomysed and it was 
therefore not possible to know if the same individual 
provided comments more than once.

 Members stated their dissatisfaction at the closure of facilities 
due to lack of staff.  

o Officers responded that there had been challenges 
in recruiting  lifeguards.  An Improvement Required 
Notice had been issued and followed up, to ensure 
the problem was addressed.

 Members commented that social media and digital marketing 
were important issues – what was the plan going forward if the 
contract provider changed?

o Officers responded that a communications plan was 
an important part of the contracts.  It was likely that 
if the provider changed, there would be some 
teething problems however, it was hoped that any 
changes would be as seamless as possible

 Members commented that generally, the report was good, and 
that issues raised were now being dealt with.

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be considered in six months time.

(The Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities and the 
Communities Manager left the meeting following consideration of 
this item).  

EH CM 

Page 35



- 18 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

32 OPPORTUNITY PETERBOROUGH 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, which updated the Panel on activity 
undertaken through the Council’s relationship with Opportunity 
Peterborough to date, and set out the work programme for the 
next six months.

Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised:

 Members commented that a good foundation had been 
achieved, but that the next few months would bear out 
whether it had been beneficial.  It was important that the 
marketing and communication document was robust, and that 
South Holland was sold well to the 
Peterborough/Cambridgeshire area. 

 The Panel was concerned that progress would not be known 
for a further six months.  An update was required sooner.  
Members also requested that feedback from Fenland and 
South Kesteven Councils (who had also worked with 
Opportunity Peterborough) be provided.

o Officers responded that feedback from both 
authorities would be sought, and that this and an 
update on progress would be provided to the next 
meeting of the Panel. 

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That an update report, to include feedback from Fenland and 
South Kesteven councils, be presented to the next meeting of 
the Panel. 

NB 

33 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Growth, which provided an update on how economic development 
was undertaken and promoted in South Holland.  Issues covered 
included Opportunity Peterborough, business engagement, major 
sites and infrastructure, inward investment, skills, Grants4growth 
and other grant funding, and strategic engagement.  

Members commented that it was good to receive such a positive 
report, and that many initiatives now were bearing fruit.  The 
Authority needed to ensure that it was successful in achieving its 

Page 36



- 19 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

fair share of funding from the GLLEP and other funding 
organisations, and the Panel needed to be reassured that all 
monies available were being applied for.

AGREED:

a) That the contents of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update be provided to the Panel at its next 
meeting.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

NB, MH 

34 INFORMATION ON FUTURE COMMERCIALISATION 
PROJECTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, which provided an update on activities and 
progress made on growth and commercialisation properties.  

Details of current projects were detailed within the report.  
Members were advised that resourcing was still the most 
challenging issue however, business was still being done.

Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised:

 Members asked whether, now some positions had been filled, 
officers were satisfied that the programme of work could be 
delivered?

o With regard to housing, officers responded that the 
additional resources helped.  Housing delivery, 
resources had been a large issue however, project 
delivery was now being supported.  Interviews 
would shortly be taking place for technical support.

o Officers also stated that there was a need to find 
new projects to replace those that were well 
underway.  Issues such as planning, viability could 
make this difficult however, the situation was moving 
forward, and some helpful work with Homes 
England had been undertaken.  

 Members asked what was happening with South Holland 
Homes.

o Officers stated that there were plans to resurrect the 
company.  It had been established with certain 
Articles, consideration had to be given to the legal 
aspects of changing this however, it would not be 
straightforward.  Consideration should also be given 
to whether it would be easier to make changes to 

Page 37



- 20 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

the company in its present position, or to start 
afresh. 

 Members asked, with the house building cap now removed, 
where would resources be found within the building trade.

o Officers agreed that the Authority needed to gear up 
to address this situation, and that it needed to work 
with suppliers, landowners and developers. 

 Members asked what the situation was in relation to the bridge 
that formed part of the Spalding Western Relief Road.  The 
road was a priority for the whole wellbeing of the district, and 
for its economic future.

o Officers responded that this project was the main 
focus for the Executive Programme Manager, and 
that the northern end was now proceeding at a 
greater pace.

 Although commercialisation was now a regular item on the 
Panel’s Work Programme, members requested that sufficient 
time be given for discussion of larger individual issues such as 
Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and the South Holland Centre.  
Members wished to look at individual projects in more depth, 
and not too late in the process. 

o Officers advised that it was likely that informal 
briefing sessions to all members would be 
undertaken at appropriate times.  Some issues be 
undertaken over a period of time.  Formal reports 
would ultimately be presented to Cabinet, with 
overarching reports to the Panel.  Officers would try 
to engage members as much as possible.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

35 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

Page 38



- 21 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

AGREED:

That the Work Programme provided by the Executive Manager – 
Governance be noted. 

36 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 8.35 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 14 November 2018 at 6.30 
pm.

PRESENT

R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
H Drury

L J Eldridge
R Grocock
C J Lawton
J L Reynolds

M D Seymour
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
P A Williams

 

In Attendance: Development Manager, Planning and Building Control Manager, 
Senior Planning Lawyer, Principal Planning Officer, Environmental Protection Team 
Leader and Democratic Services Officer
   

59. MINUTES 

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee 
held on 10 October 2018

AGREED:

That the minutes be signed as a correct record

60. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

Councillor Coupland did not have a Designated Pecuniary Interest, but stated that he 
would not vote on item 10

Councillors Lawton and Brewis did not have a Designated Pecuniary Interest, but in 
the interest of transparency declared that they had been lobbied on Item 10.

Councillor Gambba-Jones did not have a Designated Pecuniary Interest, but in the 
interest of transparency, he declared that, in relation to agenda item 12, he lived 
directly opposite to the applicant and the proposed site item 12. He stated that he 
would not vote on the item.

Councillors Brewis, Coupland and Williams had not been present at the meetings 
where agenda items 5, 6 and 7 had been discussed before they were deferred to this 
meeting. Therefore, they were asked not to take part in discussion or voting for these 
items.

Page 41

Agenda Item 8.f)



- 2 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

61. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING 
ORDERS). 

There were none

62. H16-0566-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-0566-18 Tanglewood Cedar 
Falls Care Home, Little London, 
Spalding

Full application for a building to house a biomass 
boiler system and pellet storage area, to provide up to 
220kW energy to the Care Home (retrospective).

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

Councillors Brewis, Williams and Coupland were not permitted to take part in 
discussion, due to the fact that they were not present at the meeting that this item 
was last discussed.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions outlined in section 9.0 
of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Tennant, Seconded by Councillor Gambba-Jones)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Ben Parkins (agent)

Objector – Eric Dumper (resident)

63. H09-0475-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H09-0475-18 Ashwood Homes Full application for the erection of 32 dwellings with 

associated garaging, roads and sewers.

Page 42

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 3 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

Councillors Brewis, Williams and Coupland were not permitted to take part in 
discussion, due to the fact that they were not present at the meeting that this item 
was last discussed.

It was agreed that it be made clear that no consideration was given by the Committee 
to the phrase in 7.34 of the report “and that the proposal is part of an overall scheme 
that provides much needed sports/recreational facilities for the town.”

Councillor Grocock wanted it stated in the minutes that he was happy with the 
changes that the developers had made to this proposal since it was deferred 
by the Committee and that he was pleased to note that the developer had been 
working clearly with officers.

AGREED:

That the Development Manager be authorised to grant permission subject to;
1. Those conditions listed at section 9.0 of the report;
2. The applicant entering into a S106 planning obligation relating to the provision 

of affordable housing, plus LCC Education and NHS Financial Contributions.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Grocock)

64. H02-0575-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H02-0575-18 Ashwood Homes Full application for the erection of 47 dwellings with 

associated garaging, roads and sewers.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

Page 43

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 4 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

Councillors Brewis, Williams and Coupland were not permitted to take part in 
discussion, due to the fact that they were not present at the meeting that this item 
was last discussed.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the applicant entering into a Section 
106 agreement for the provision of 4 affordable housing units and financial 
contributions towards healthcare provision and the delivery of improvements and 
additions to fitness equipment/facilities in Crowland, and those Conditions listed at 
Section 9.0 of this report subject to wording of condition 3 being amended to no 
occupation of any dwelling in place of no part of the development shall be 
commenced.

(Moved by Councillor Drury , Seconded by Councillor Eldridge)

65. H02-0659-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H02-0659-18 Wheatley Group 
Developments

Reserved Matters application for the Erection of 100 
dwellings and associated works - outline approval 
H02-1087-14 allowed on appeal and the discharge of 
Condition 10 (management of publicly accessible open 
space) and Condition 11 (management of incidental 
open space, recycling/refuse collection points and 
parking courts/private drives) of the host outline 
planning permission (H02-1087-14) at the land at 
Harvester Way, Crowland.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That the reserved matters be approved subject to the creation of a visual barrier 
between the proposed development and open countryside and the conditions listed 
at section 9.0 of the report subject to the plan numbers being updated in condition 1 
to reflect the amendments received since the report was drafted

Page 44

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 5 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

(Moved by Councillor Drury , Seconded by Councillor Tyrrell)

66. H09-0863-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H09-0863-17 Mr & Mrs J Swepstone Outline application for a residential development (7 

plots) including demolition of existing site buildings at 
Swepstones Ltd 115-119, Battlefields Lane, North 
Holbeach.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That, contrary to Officers’ recommendations, planning permission be refused, due to 
sustainability concerns relating to the proposed development being too isolated from 
amenities by virtue of its location in relation to the A17 as well as because of the loss 
of commercial land that was presented by this proposed development and on flood 
risk.

(Moved by Councillor Brewis, Seconded by Councillor Seymour)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Charlotte Lockwood (on behalf of applicant)

67. H10-0915-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H10-0915-18 Princes Ltd Full application for the demolition of existing buildings 

and erection of a new Raw Materials Warehouse and 
Ingredient Processing Centre (Use class B2/B8) at 
Princes Limited, Bridge Road, Long Sutton.

Page 45

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 6 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Tyrrell, Seconded by Councillor Drury)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Mr Ian Hales (Applicant)

68. H16-0738-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-0738-18 Cley Developments Ltd Full application for the erection of 12 apartments (use 

class C3) and a flexible commercial use at ground 
floor (use classes A1, A2, A3 or D1) at the land 
adjacent to Station Street, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That, contrary to Officers’ recommendations, planning permission be refused as the 
proposal would have an unacceptably harmful impact on the character and 
appearance of the conservation area, with the design not being of a sufficiently high 
design within the conservation area and the height of the building would add to its 
incongruity within the context of the wider streetscene.

Page 46

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 7 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

(Moved by Councillor Lawton, Seconded by Councillor Cllr Reynolds)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Craig Smith (agent)

69. H16-0735-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-0735-18 Mrs Dianne Rafferty Full application for part change of use of domestic 

garage into hairdressing salon at 3 Claudette Way, 
Spalding, Lincolnshire.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Eldridge)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Mr Andrew Rafferty (Applicant)

Cllr Brewis left the meeting at 21:52 

70. H22-0861-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H22-0861-18 Verralls & Porter Ltd Full application for the construction of a single dwelling 

and garage at land adjacent to Church View, 87 High 
Road, Weston

Page 47

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 8 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Grocock, Seconded by Councillor Casson)

71. H17-0909-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H17-0909-18 Mrs Joan Pybus Full application for a single-storey side extension at 87 

Station Road, Surfleet, Spalding. 

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Avery , Seconded by Councillor Drury)

72. H08-0947-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal

Page 48

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 9 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

H08-0947-18 Cook Full application for a rear single-storey accessible 
bedroom extension at 8 Cawood Lane, Gosberton, 
Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Seymour , Seconded by Councillor Avery)

73. H22-0933-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H22-0933-18 Mrs Rachel Adams Full application for a side and rear single-storey 

extension for improved accessibility at 6 St Johns 
Road, Weston Hills, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed at section 9.0 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Casson , Seconded by Councillor Grocock)

74. PLANNING UPDATES. 

Page 49

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 10 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 November 
2018

There were none.

75. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were none.

(The meeting ended at 10.14 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 50



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 19 December 2018 at 6.30 
pm.

PRESENT

R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
D Ashby
P E Coupland
H Drury

R Grocock
J L Reynolds
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell

P A Williams
J R Astill
A Casson

 

In Attendance: Principal Planning Officer, Development Manager, Planning and 
Building Control Manager, Senior Planning Lawyer and Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis, 
L J Eldridge, C J Lawton and M D Seymour 

76. MINUTES 

Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning 
Committee Held on 14 November 2018.

AGREED

That the minutes be signed as a correct record

77. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

Councillor Alcock had no Designated Pecuniary Interest, but in the interest of 
transparency declared that, in relation to agenda item 5, he was a member of the 
Parish Council that represented the area in which the proposed development was 
situated.

78. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING 
ORDERS). 

There were none

79. H02-0673-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H02-0673-18 Ashwood Homes Full application for the erection of 47 dwellings with 

associated garaging, roads and sewers at the land off 
Crease Drove, Crowland

.

Page 51

Agenda Item 8.g)



- 2 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 19 December 
2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

That permission be granted subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 
agreement for the provision of 7 affordable housing units and financial contributions 
of £122,633 towards open space and recreation provision for children and young 
people in Crowland and £14,734 towards secondary education provision at The 
Deepings School and those Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Grocock, Seconded by Councillor Avery)

80. H14-0720-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H14-0720-18 Mr M J Preston & Mrs C 
L Tidswell

Outline application for a proposed residential 
development of up to 96 dwellings at the land off 
Wardentree Lane, Pinchbeck, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

Authorised to Grant Permission, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 
agreement relating to the provision of affordable housing, financial contributions to 
education and health, and those conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report, in 
addition to the following amendments;

 Condition 1 time periods to be reduced from three years to two and two years 
to one.

Page 52

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 3 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 19 December 
2018

 Condition 7 to be reworded to “Before the commencement of development 
hereby permitted, where the layout for the approval of reserved matters 
includes any areas of incidental open space, refuse/recycling collection points 
and parking courts/private drives, details of the landscape management and 
maintenance schedule for these areas, shall be submitted to, and approved in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter these areas shall be 
maintained in accordance with the approved details.”

 Condition 9 parts ii) and iii) to be deleted as the Environment Agency 
confirmed these measures are not required due to the finished floor levels 
being set at 3.4 m Above Ordnance Datum (AOD).

 Condition 17 to be deleted as a scheme of archaeological investigation has 
been submitted as part of the application.

 Conditions 18 and 19 to be reworded to reflect the deletion of condition 17.

 A further informative to be added regarding Environmental Services’ 
comments with regard to refuse/recycling collection.

(Moved by Councillor Astill, Seconded by Councillor Drury)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Michael Braithwaite (Agent)

81. H01-0871-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H01-0871-18 Messrs N & D Bacon & 
Mr B M Drury

Outline application for a residential development – up 
to 45 dwellings, including re-alignment of Mill Drove to 
Stonegate Road Junction at former Station Yard & 
Croft House Nursery, Mill Drove South, Cowbit

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

Page 53

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 4 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 19 December 
2018

That Planning Permission be granted, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 
106 agreement for the provision of 25% on-site affordable housing and financial 
contributions towards education and healthcare, and those Conditions listed at 
Section 9.0 of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Grocock, Seconded by Councillor Drury)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Lee Russell (Agent)

82. H22-0754-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H22-0754-18 Mr & Mrs Biehler Outline application for a residential development for 51 

dwellings at 163-183 High Road, Weston, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

That planning permission be granted, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 
106 agreement relating to the provision of affordable housing and a financial 
contribution to cater for extra NHS capacity, and those conditions listed at Section 9.0 
of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Grocock, Seconded by Councillor Casson)

83. H16-0423-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-0423-18 Mr C Bond Full application for a replacement dwelling following 

permission for demolition of existing dwelling at 11 
Tower Lane, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Page 54

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 5 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 19 December 
2018

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

That planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of 
the report

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Tyrrell)

84. H14-0578-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H14-0578-18 Monograms Rentals Ltd Full application for the demolition of garage block and 

erection of two-storey dwelling at the land adjacent to 
33 Knight Street, Pinchbeck, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

That planning permission be granted subject to amendments to conditions.  Condition 
7 to have “ Notwithstanding the submitted details” added , Condition 10 to refer to the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 and a 
further additional condition requiring the car port to be retained as such, and not be 
used for any purpose other than the parking of private motor vehicles associated with 
the residential occupation of the property and ancillary domestic storage, without the 
grant of further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Grocock)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application in accordance 
with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – Mr J Bowser (applicant)

Page 55

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 6 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 19 December 
2018

85. H20-1052-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H20-1052-18 Mr & Mrs P Stubley Full application for a residential development – 

erection of 4 dwellings off Chapel gate, Sutton St 
James, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

AGREED

That planning permission be granted, subject to those conditions listed at Section 9.0 
of this report.

(Moved by Councillor Astill, Seconded by Councillor Tyrrell)

86. PLANNING UPDATES 

There were none

87. SOUTH HOLLAND BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER 

Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Growth and the 
Portfolio Holder for Place which sought to inform Members of the update to the South 
Holland District Brownfield Land Register, which will be published on the Council’s 
website.

AGREED

That the South Holland Brownfield Land Register 2018 is approved for publication.

88. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were none.

89. COMMITTEE ARRANGEMENTS 

Page 56

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 7 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 19 December 
2018

The Chairman of the Planning Committee invited members to vote on the proposed 
arrangement to hold further meetings of the Planning Committee during the day for a 
trial period of up to May 2019.

The Chairman asked that the present substitutes refrain from voting, leaving the vote 
to only standing members. In view of this, the Chairman had gathered the opinions of 
all of the standing members who could not attend this meeting. Out of 4 members 
who were not in attendance, 2 were in favour of the proposal, and 2 were against the 
proposal.

Members stated that they felt that the parking provision would be difficult for 
members of the public during office hours. In addition, they felt that the majority of the 
public work during the daytime and therefore would find it hard to attend.

The Chairman stated that he felt the move to daytime meetings would satisfy a 
greater quality of debate as it would allow case officers to be present

AGREED

That no change be made and the current arrangements be retained.

(The meeting ended at 9.12 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 11 January 2019

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 10.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

To provide members with the JMWMS 
that has been created by the 
Lincolnshire Waste Partnership

Cabinet 15 Jan 2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Corporate 
Delivery and 
Strategic 
Oversight

A report 
concerning a 
proposed HRA 
development at 
Small Drove, 
Weston

To consider a business case in relation 
to the development of 34 affordable 
homes at Small Drove, Weston.

South Holland District 
Council 23 Jan 2019

P
age 60



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Jan 
2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Car Parking 
Recommendatio
ns

To review the recommendations for car 
parking provision in SHDC owned car 
parks prior to statutory consultation

Cabinet 12 Feb 2019

Leader

Records 
Management 
Policy

To approve a shared Records 
Management Policy (incorporating 
Retention Policy) for both South 
Holland District Council and Breckland 
District Council

Cabinet 12 Mar 2019

P
age 61



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Flat Roof 
replacement and 
repairs Contract

For the replacement of various types of 
flat roofs to Council Dwellings, 
outbuildings and garages, which have 
reached the end of their lifespan and 
require replacement or repairs.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Chimney repairs, 
repointing and 
removal Contract

For the Chimney repairs, repointing 
and removal including Pitched roof 
repairs to various council dwellings as 
identified in reaching the end of their 
lifespan, or the chimney is no longer 
required.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2019

P
age 62



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

General Repairs 
- Maintenance of 
footpaths, 
roadways and 
boundary walls.

For the external general repairs for 
concrete footpaths, roadways and 
boundary walls, serving council 
dwellings and garages, which have 
reached the end of their lifespan and 
require replacement or repairs.

. Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Apr 
2019

P
age 63



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

6

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process Meetings and discussions

Officer Decisions Before 
30 Apr 2019

*Cabinet Membership

P
age 64



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

7

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 65

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Brewis – Member of Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire

To: South Holland District Council - 23 January 2019

(Author: Councillor Brewis)

Subject Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 

Purpose: To update the Council after the latest meeting of the Health Scrutiny for 
Lincolnshire Committee.

Recommendation(s): 

Councillor Brewis recommends:

That the report be noted.

1.  TRANSFORMATION PLAN 

A lot of the implementation, and public consultation, had been adversely 
affected by the delays in national guidance, largely caused by government 
having to concentrate on other matters.

There had been an announcement that Health Services would receive an 
extra 3 per cent per annum for the next five years. I happen to think that if it is 
intended that the 'tsunami' of health needs coming over the horizon, from 
patients who are now getting older, and would not have survived infancy or 
childhood in the 1930s and 1940s, is to be addressed, a huge investment in 
the NHS on an as yet unimagined scale will be needed.

There are currently 100,000 vacancies in the NHS, and that shortfall 
continues to grow. More and more medical staff are going on to 'locum' lists, 
in that (a) that is more lucrative for them, and (b) because it gives them more 
freedom. Long term the arrival of a medical school attached to Lincoln 
University will help, but there is a crisis, which means that for safety reasons 
some very unpalatable decisions may have to be taken in the not too distant 
future.

There needs to be a much greater emphasis on 'public health', and 
prevention, and training people to look after their own health much better than 
has been the case heretofore.

The priorities were Cancer, Digital Integration, and Prevention.

Page 67

Agenda Item 11.



All branches of the NHS needed integration, and there were cases where the 
various branches of the NHS, like many areas of government, work in 'silos'.

Cross border arrangements, in the case of South Holland principally King's 
Lynn and Peterborough, remain very important, as three quarters of patients 
in our South Clinical Commissioning Group area go to Peterborough City or 
Queen Elizabeth for hospital appointments, which adversely affects the 
viability and financial position of the United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust.

2. LOCAL AIMS 2019-2020 

There remains a need for more integration, system-wide.

There was now one county-wide system of CCGs (Clinical
Commissioning Groups) with the four Lincolnshire CCGs working as one.

Huge problems remain with finance and retaining and recruiting workforce.

There is a belief that there is a fighting chance of radically improving things 
through the transformation plan.

My belief is that there needs to be even closer integration between
NHS, public health, and adult and children’s social care.

3. ACUTE SERVICES REVIEW 

The acute services review in Lincolnshire will possibly be completed in about 
four to six months, when there will be a full, open consultation. This will be a 
huge event within our county, covering all the issues, including integration and 
cross-border matters.

Recruitment events are being held in schools, and I mentioned again the need 
to talk to students who are much younger, rather than near the end of Year 
11, when minds are made up, about the lifelong opportunities which exist in 
the health and caring fields.

A frank discussion elicited the already known fact that the finances are in a 
parlous state.

4. SOUTH AND SOUTH WEST CCG REPORTS 

The two clinical commissioning groups in the south of Lincolnshire account 
for:

South: £229 million. 168,000 people.
South West: £182 million. 138,000 people.

Generally in Lincolnshire, and especially in the East CCG area, was a 
problem of the large number of people who 'live' here, but are not registered 
here, and choose Lincolnshire as their base for long periods of the year, whilst 

Page 68



another area, Nottinghamshire or Derbyshire for example, receive the NHS 
funding for their 'existence'.

So even though they 'use' Lincolnshire NHS services, our county's
NHS services do not receive the funding towards that.
There have been several attempts to find a way of counting this 'hidden' 
population, but the difficulty has always been experienced of trying to count 
people whose main object in life is 'not to be counted'!

Since April 2017 the South and South West CCGs had been operating as a 
joint organisation.

Deprivation was a big issue, as was the increasing number of people over 
retirement age. Life expectancy was rising, as was the incidence of diabetes.

More than twenty per cent of reception class children were now considered to 
be overweight.

Other issues were adult hearing loss, the success of general practice 
neighbourhood teams, and the slow progress on mental health issues, 
especially among young people.

One third of planned operations were cancelled in 2017.

The deficit for the two CCGs for 2017-2018 was £3,394,000.

Patient choice remained paramount, but there was a need for even more care 
in local communities, and less in acute hospitals.

Whilst large numbers of people from our district will always choose to go 'out 
of county', there was a chance that with excellent services, a number might be 
attracted back to services in Lincolnshire.

Missed appointments remain a huge problem, and texting or ringing to remind 
people was being done more and more. Services were continually adapting 
and being reshaped to reflect current needs.

Hoarding of drugs which can never be used again, and over prescription, 
remain serious, expensive problems.

5. NON-EMERGENCY TRANSPORT – THAMES AMBULANCE 

There was still a huge amount of work to be done, despite being under new 
management for eight months.

Attrition of staff moving to work for EMAS instead remained a problem. There 
were currently 19 ambulance driver vacancies, which were expected to be 
filled by 28th December 2018. Five apprentices had been recruited.

A joint recruitment campaign with EMAS was taking place.

Page 69



The CQC report had indicated improvement, but still areas of concern 
remained.

97 per cent of staff had undertaken all their statutory training. It was 
anticipated that fifteen our of eighteen KPIs (Key Performance
Indicators) would be achieved by June 2019.

EMAS were recruiting new staff to Lincolnshire, and that meant that some of 
those would be existing TASL drivers!

More staff were needed, including at Spalding, where staff had left to join 
EMAS.

900 outstanding complaints had been dealt with, including 15 under the 
previous administration where no response had been made to a
Member of Parliament.

In November 2018 there had been only three complaints.

He remained optimistic about the next visit from the Care Quality
Commission.

Despite the assurances, the committee unanimously agreed to write to the 
relevant CCG, with a view to asking them when and if they might consider 
ending the contract with TASL and seeking another provider.

6. FUTURE 

If any member has an item of general interest to all which they would like 
Health Scrutiny to consider looking into, then please let me know.

7. WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

a. All Wards

8. ACRONYMS

a. CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group

b. NHS – National Health Service

c. EMAS – East Midlands Ambulance Service

d. TASL – Thames Ambulance Service Limited

e. CQC – Care Quality Commission

Page 70



Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Gregory Watkinson Democratic Services Officer, 

Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number Tel: 01775 764599
Email: gwatkinson@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 

Exempt Decision: N 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

Agenda Item 15.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 17.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

Agenda Item 18.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 119

Agenda Item 19.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	8.a) Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel - 1 November 2018
	Minutes

	8.b) Policy Development Panel - 7 November 2018
	Minutes

	8.c) Licensing Committee - 8 November 2018
	Minutes

	8.d) Committee of the Licensing Authority - 8 November 2018
	Minutes

	8.e) Performance Monitoring Panel - 13 November 2018
	Minutes

	8.f) Planning Committee -14 November 2018
	Minutes

	8.g) Planning Committee - 19 December 2018
	Minutes

	10. Key Decision Plan
	11. Reports from Outside Bodies
	15. Restricted Minutes
	17. Facilitating the Delivery of Strategic Work Programmes.
	Appendix 1

	18. Resourcing within the Planning & Building Control Department
	Appendix 1 for Resourcing within the Planning & Building Control Department
	Appendix 2 for Resourcing within the Planning & Building Control Department

	19. Senior Manager Workforce Strategy
	Appendix 2 for Senior Manager Workforce Strategy
	Appendix 3 for Senior Manager Workforce Strategy
	Appendix 4 for Senior Manager Workforce Strategy


